
PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 12, 2016 AT 6:30 PM 

CORDOVA CENTER COMMUNITY ROOMS A & B 
 

AGENDA 

If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend City-sponsored functions, you may contact 424-6200 for assistance. 
Full Planning Commission agendas and packets are available online at www.cityofcordova.net. 

 
 

    
    
    

 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
2. ROLL CALL 

Commissioners Tom Bailer, Tom McGann, Scott Pegau, John Baenen, Allen 
Roemhildt, Mark Frohnapfel, and Heath Kocan 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (voice vote) 
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR (voice vote) 

a. Minutes of November 10, 2015 Regular Meeting ........................................................................ Page 2-4 
b. Minutes of December 8, 2015 Public Hearing.............................................................................. Page 5 
c. Minutes of December 8, 2015 Regular Meeting ........................................................................... Page 6-8 
d. Record excused absences for John Baenen and Allen Roemhildt from the December 8, 2015 

Regular Meeting 
5. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
6. CORRESPONDENCE 
7. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 

a. Guest Speakers 
b. Audience comments regarding agenda items (3 minutes per speaker) 

8. PLANNER’S REPORT .................................................................................................................... Page 9 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Site Plan Review – Ocean Beauty Seafoods, LLC ....................................................................... Page 10-43 
10. NEW/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

a. Site Plan Review – Alpine Diesel ................................................................................................. Page 44-60 
b. Review of Proposals for the Existing Library/Museum Land and/or Building ............................ Page 61-122 

i. Facility Contractors .................................................................................................................. Page 91-100 
ii. Seaman’s Hardware .................................................................................................................. Page 101-104 
iii. Moose Lodge ............................................................................................................................ Page 105-106 
iv. Cannery Row ............................................................................................................................ Page 107-117 
v. Cordova Drug ........................................................................................................................... Page 118-119 
vi. Children’s Pallas ....................................................................................................................... Page 120-121 
vii. Native Village of Eyak ............................................................................................................. Page 122 

c. Disposal of Old City Hall Building .............................................................................................. Page 123-136 
d. Chair Election ............................................................................................................................... Page 137 
e. Vice Chair Election ....................................................................................................................... Page 138 

11. PENDING CALENDAR 
a. January 2016 Calendar .................................................................................................................. Page 139 
b. February 2016 Calendar ................................................................................................................ Page 140 

12. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
13. COMMISSION COMMENTS 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

Chair 
vacant 
 

Commissioners 
Tom Bailer 
Tom McGann 
Scott Pegau 
John Baenen 
Allen Roemhildt 
Mark Frohnapfel 
Heath Kocan 
 

City Planner 
Samantha Greenwood 
 

Assistant Planner 
Leif Stavig 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes
November 10, 2015
Page 1 of 3

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015 AT 6:30 PM

CORDOVA CENTER COMMUNITY ROOMS A & B

MINUTES

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chairman John Greenwood called the Planning Commission Regular Meeting to order at 6:30 PM on November 
10, 2015 in Cordova Center Community Rooms A & B.

2. ROLL CALL

Present for roll call were Chairman John Greenwood and Commissioners Tom McGann, Scott Pegau, John 

Baenen, Allen Roemhildt, and Mark Frohnapfel. Commissioner Tom Bailer was absent.

Also present were City Planner, Samantha Greenwood, and Assistant Planner, Leif Stavig.

3 people were in the audience.

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

M/Pegau S/Roemhildt to approve the agenda.
Upon voice vote, motion passed 6-0.
Yea: Greenwood, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel

Absent: Bailer

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR

a. Minutes of October 13, 2015 Regular Meeting

b. Record excused absences for Mark Frohnapfel and John Greenwood from the October 13, 2015 

Regular Meeting

M/Pegau S/Roemhildt to approve the consent calendar.
Upon voice vote, motion passed 6-0.
Yea: Greenwood, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel

Absent: Bailer

5. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

6. CORRESPONDENCE

a. State of Alaska DOT Public Notice

b. State of Alaska DOT Public Notice

7. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS

a. Guest Speakers

i. Kate Morse – Copper River Watershed Project

Morse said she has been trying to come the commission at least once a year to report. Largely, Eyak 
Lake, Odiak Pond, and Orca Inlet receive the stormwater runoff from the city. Stormwater carries non-
point source pollution, which according to the EPA is the leading cause of degrading water quality. From 
the Exxon Valdez spill, they have learned that very small quantities of oil and contaminants can effect 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

2 of 140

planner2
Draft



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes
November 10, 2015
Page 2 of 3

salmon. In June the Watershed Project had a community celebration at the bioswale in Odiak Park. 
Kristin Carpenter, Executive Director, presented a snow storage project at Odiak Park. With two-year 
funding from the Exxon Valdez Trustee Council they were able to develop the project with the city, state 
DOT, and an engineering firm. Morse showed the commission the new channel created where there was 
an old railroad culvert near Odiak Pond. The Watershed Project partnered with Shoreside Petroleum to 
encourage people to replace old oil tanks. She encouraged them to go to the native plant garden by Odiak 
Pond. 

b. Audience comments regarding agenda items

8. PLANNER’S REPORT

S. Greenwood said that the Cordova Center Grand Opening occurred last week. There is a City Council meeting 
on the 23rd in case anyone on the commission wanted to support the capital improvements list the commission 
passed. S. Greenwood said that the petition referring the ordinance disposing of the Breakwater Fill Lot had been 
turned in and that the City Clerk was verifying all of the names. S. Greenwood said that the staff was looking 
into the current nuisance code. Baenen said that he hasn’t seen anything happening with the Samuelson building 
with the collapsed roof. He said that they had put a temporary roof last winter, but nothing has happened since 
then. S. Greenwood said that the LT2 project was underway and that things were picking up. The completion 
date is March 15.

9. NEW/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS

a. Discussion on Disposal of Library/Museum Land and Building

Pegau said that proposals will come before the Planning Commission. The commission never said what they 
would consider an acceptable proposal. The intent of the discussion is to look at it; for example, if someone 
wanted the middle lot and offered $40,000, would that be acceptable? Should the city retain it to maintain 
parking? Baenen said he agreed that they need to try to decide what the commission’s or community’s idea 
was for the space. He wants to see those buildings go away and move forward with the property. He thinks 
that maybe the city should retain the land for a parking lot or future swimming pool. Roemhildt said he 
agreed and he thinks the city needs to retain the land and think long and hard about what to do with a vacant 
lot on Main Street. He also wanted to get rid of the buildings. McGann also sees the need for parking, but 
once the fire hall is gone, there won’t be because there will be plenty down below. He does think they should 
retain a few of the lots for parking. He likes how the code is written for Central Business District. He thinks 
there are a lot of cool things that could go in there and he doesn’t think they should restrict it to any one type 
of business. Pegau thinks it is important that they don’t break all of the lots up into very small pieces as they 
are so narrow. J. Greenwood said the city parking lot between Seaman’s and First National Bank is three lots 
wide. Baenen said his concern with the RFP being wide open is that everyone with a proposal is going to try 
to utilize the buildings. Frohnapfel said he thinks that is what council was trying to do. McGann said that 
the city has been accused of acting too hastily in disposing of property. He doesn’t see any urgency if the 
building is shut down. It can sit there until somebody has a great idea. Frohnapfel said that what he hears 
from people is that the city promised to get out of those buildings whether or not they cost anything. He 
thinks it is worth it to request proposals as they don’t have to accept any of them. Pegau said that residential 
uses are allowable in the Central Business District. Baenen said his reasoning for considering having a new 
pool at that location was its proximity to the school. He said for it to get funds, the swimming pool has to be 
within a certain distance according to people from the Parks and Recreation Department. Pegau said he still 
hears people say they would like the Fire/Police Station to be there. Frohnapfel said he doesn’t think there 
is a better place for the station, but that it probably isn’t feasible in the community. J. Greenwood said that 
at this stage the RFP is already out, they will have to see what proposals come in.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

3 of 140

planner2
Draft



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes
November 10, 2015
Page 3 of 3

10. PENDING CALENDAR

J. Greenwood said there is a Work Session on the 12th in the Cordova Center Education Room. S. Greenwood 
said it is a time to review the project and get input from the commission and the public. Stavig said it was also a 
presentation of the plans by the engineer.

11. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

Randy Robertson thanked those who have served for their service. 

12. COMMISSION COMMENTS

McGann said he is interested in the upcoming Work Session.

Baenen verified that it was J. Greenwood’s last meeting and thanked him. 

J. Greenwood said he had served two terms and had fun. He said he only had a few contentious meetings. 

13. ADJOURNMENT

M/McGann S/Pegau to adjourn the Regular Meeting at 7:48 PM.
With no objection, the meeting was adjourned.

Approved:

____________________________
Tom Bailer, Co-Chairman

____________________________
Leif Stavig, Assistant Planner 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

4 of 140

planner2
Draft



Planning Commission Public Hearing - Minutes

December 8, 2015

Page 1 of 1

PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING

DECEMBER 8, 2015 AT 6:30 PM

CORDOVA CENTER COMMUNITY ROOMS A & B

MINUTES

1. CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chairman Tom Bailer called the Planning Commission Public Hearing to order at 6:30 PM on December 8, 

2015 in Cordova Center Community Rooms A & B.

2. ROLL CALL

Present for roll call were Co-Chairman Tom Bailer and Commissioners Tom McGann, Scott Pegau, Mark 

Frohnapfel, and Heath Kocan. Commissioners John Baenen and Allen Roemhildt were absent.

Also present was City Planner Samantha Greenwood.

3 people were in the audience.

3. PUBLIC HEARING

a. Final Plat Approval for Ladd SLUP Lot

b. Preliminary Plat Approval for 2015 Cabin Lake SLUP Lots Subdivision

Angela Butler, 918 Center Drive Unit 2, was there to speak about both plats. She said they were straightforward 

and that she doesn’t anticipate any problems. 

M/Frohnapfel S/McGann to recess for 10 minutes.

With no objection, the meeting was recessed.

Bailer called the Public Hearing back to order at 6:45 PM.

4. ADJOURNMENT

M/Frohnapfel S/Pegau to adjourn the Public Hearing at 6:45 PM.

With no objection, the meeting was adjourned.

Approved:

____________________________

Tom Bailer, Co-Chair

____________________________

Leif Stavig, Assistant Planner 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

5 of 140

planner2
Draft



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes
December 8, 2015
Page 1 of 3

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

DECEMBER 8, 2015 AT 6:45 PM

CORDOVA CENTER COMMUNITY ROOMS A & B

MINUTES

1. CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chairman Tom Bailer called the Planning Commission Regular Meeting to order at 6:45 PM on December 
8, 2015 in Cordova Center Community Rooms A & B.

2. ROLL CALL

Present for roll call were Co-Chairman Tom Bailer and Commissioners Tom McGann, Scott Pegau, Mark 

Frohnapfel, and Heath Kocan. Commissioners John Baenen and Allen Roemhildt were absent.

Also present was City Planner Samantha Greenwood.

3 people were in the audience.

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

M/Pegau S/McGann to approve the agenda.
Upon voice vote, motion passed 5-0.
Yea: Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Frohnapfel, Kocan

Absent: Baenen, Roemhildt

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR

a. Minutes of November 12, 2015 Work Session

b. Record excused absences for Tom Bailer from the November 10, 2015 Regular Meeting

M/Pegau S/Frohnapfel to approve the consent calendar.
Upon voice vote, motion passed 5-0.
Yea: Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Frohnapfel, Kocan

Absent: Baenen, Roemhildt

5. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

6. CORRESPONDENCE

a. Forest Service Public Scoping Letter for Elodea Herbicide Treatment 

b. Letter from Cordova Drug Co., Inc. re: Library/Museum Disposal

Bailer said he did remember the conversation about setting aside one or two of those lots for parking. 

7. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS

a. Audience comments regarding agenda items

Dave O’Brien, co-owner of Cordova Drug, said his letter says everything he wants to comment on. He thinks 
the city would have gotten more resistance from the business owners in town had they known the parking 
taken up by the Cordova Center wasn’t going to be replaced. He said that Frohnapfel told him that zoning 
doesn’t require parking on Main Street. He likens it to putting a sports stadium in the middle of a business 
district with no regards for parking. During the Christmas Bazaar, the parking lot next to Seaman’s was full 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

6 of 140

planner2
Draft



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes
December 8, 2015
Page 2 of 3

all night and he averaged four customers an hour. The first place people are going to park to go to the Cordova 
Center is Main Street. The parking lot below is going to be ignored.

McGann said that they did have discussion at the last meeting about the lots and parking was an issue. It is 
also important to note that the plan is to get rid of at least half of the old City Hall building which would 
drastically increase parking. Just because there is a request for proposals doesn’t mean that they have to 
accept any of them. O’Brien said that he submitted a proposal to turn that into a parking lot. Pegau said that 
parking was on their radar and that the existing parking lot on Main Street is three lots. O’Brien said that he 
had verbal support from other business owners on Main Street. 

8. PLANNER’S REPORT

Greenwood said the city put water meters in on four out of the six lines going into the harbor. In the past the 
harbor has paid $9,600 a year for water. If they used the metered amount, they would have paid $25,000. The 
Harbor Commission will be having a discussion about it. 

Greenwood said that the city received a nuisance complaint and they are working on how to move forward with 
the nuisance process. The city sent a letter to a property owner. McGann said he would like to see odors addressed 
in the nuisance code. 

9. NEW/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS

a. Site Plan Review – Ocean Beauty Seafoods, LLC

M/McGann S/Pegau to recommend to the City Council to approve the Site Plan Review requested by Ocean 
Beauty Seafoods, LLC to construct a facility to process fish waste on Lot 3A, Block 1, Cordova Industrial 
Park based on the findings and with the special conditions a contained in the staff report. 

Pegau said that he was not finding the components necessary for the site plan. The plan drawing is at a scale 
that encompasses so much that you cannot find the parts that you need such as setbacks and edge of road. He 
can’t find a building height elevation drawing. He is looking for what the building looks like and he sees a 
lot of parts. McGann said that it appears there is a loading door on the east end of the building and he doesn’t 
think there can be parking in front of it. The notion of trucks being outside of the property line doesn’t cut it 
for him. McGann also said that tying into sewer with a two inch line doesn’t seem reasonable. Greenwood 
said that they have to wait until the Water Superintendent was back to town to go over the water and sewer 
connections. Greenwood said they could move the fire hydrant across Jim Poor Avenue so that parking along 
Breakwater Avenue would remain. McGann said that when the city sold the lot to Ocean Beauty it was going 
to be a tunnel freezer and they were going to increase capacity and modify the existing building to get the 53 
footers off the right of way. Jeff Backlund from Ocean Beauty said that as far as trucks and parking their 
preference would be to go straight in and out of the loading area. They would like to move the hydrant and 
the light pole. Bailer verified that the snow was shedding towards the breakwater. Greenwood said that her 
list for what they need is: finished building appearance, roof elevations, building height, grading plan relative 
to the road, and water, sewer, and storm drainage plans. Backlund said that the loading door on the south 
side of the building was for getting equipment into the building during construction, but it wouldn’t be used 
regularly. 

M/McGann S/Frohnapfel to refer the site plan back to staff.
Upon voice vote, motion to refer passed 5-0.
Yea: Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Frohnapfel, Kocan

Absent: Baenen, Roemhildt

b. Final Plat Approval for Ladd SLUP Lot

M/Pegau S/McGann to approve the final plat request for Ladd SLUP Lot. 
Upon voice vote, motion passed 5-0.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

7 of 140

planner2
Draft



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes
December 8, 2015
Page 3 of 3

Yea: Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Frohnapfel, Kocan

Absent: Baenen, Roemhildt

c. Preliminary Plat Approval for 2015 Cabin Lake SLUP Lots Subdivision

M/McGann S/Pegau to approve the Preliminary Plat request for 2015 Cabin Lake SLUP Lots Subdivision.

McGann verified with Butler that there were buildings already being built on the lots. Pegau suggested the 
lots be renamed differently from the previous subdivision. 

Upon voice vote, motion passed 5-0.
Yea: Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Frohnapfel, Kocan

Absent: Baenen, Roemhildt

10. PENDING CALENDAR

Greenwood said that they would be doing to Chair and Vice Chair elections at the next meeting. She said the 
meeting was full so she may put the Land Disposal Maps at a different commission meeting. 

Greenwood said that the Great Land Trust is going to be at the February 3rd City Council meeting to discuss the 
land donation at Fleming Spit. 

11. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

Bob Ladd thanked the commission for their approval. 

12. COMMISSION COMMENTS

Kocan said he was happy to be there. 

McGann said they are happy he is there. 

Pegau welcomed Kocan.

Frohnapfel thanked Kocan for stepping up.

Bailer thanked the staff and said thanks for the Pete’s Treats. He also thanked Kocan.

13. ADJOURNMENT

M/McGann S/Pegau to adjourn the Regular Meeting at 7:48 PM.
With no objection, the meeting was adjourned.

Approved:

____________________________
Tom Bailer, Co-Chair

____________________________
Leif Stavig, Assistant Planner 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

8 of 140

planner2
Draft



Planner’s Report
To: Planning Commission

From: Planning Staff

Date: 1/7/16

Re: Recent Activities and Updates

 One building permit issued since the last meeting.

 Meals water treatment plant offline, installing UV equipment, UV equipment start up January 13th.

 Paving bid will be issued January 8th and close February 5th.

 Edited O&M manual and Emergency Action Plan for Meals Dam, forwarded information to Dam 

inspector for final report. 

 Updated COOP plan for Public works and Planning

 Working on code revision for public nuisance 

 Grant Land Trust will be guest speaker at the February 3rd City Council meeting to discuss the process 

and possible land donation of the Stern Property. Property is located above ponds at Fleming Spit. 

 Spoke with Brian from ADOT  ROW department concerning the culvert replacement at Fleming Spit 

Ponds. Discussed City Property involved and waiting for a map and easement proposal. Project is still 

in permitting process it is highly unlikely that the project will occur this summer.  

 Tideland acquisition is moving forward with State of Alaska. Possible decision by late January. 

 Assisting Public works Director for roads project, LT2 and Crater Lake feasibility study.

 2016 Land Disposal Maps were pulled from this meeting due to the amount of items on the agenda. 

Does the commission want to hold a Special Meeting or address them at their next Regular Meeting?

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

9 of 140



Site Plan Review – Ocean Beauty Seafoods, LLC 

Page 1 of 4

Memorandum
To: Planning Commission

From: Planning Staff

Date: 1/7/16

Re: Site Plan Review – Ocean Beauty Seafoods, LLC

PART I – GENERAL INFORMATION

Requested Actions: Site Plan Review

Applicant: Ocean Beauty Seafoods, LLC

Owner Name: Ocean Beauty Seafoods, LLC 

Address: 301 Jim Poor Ave.

Legal Description: Lot 3A, Block 1, Cordova Industrial Park

Parcel Number: 02-060-205

Zoning: Waterfront Industrial District

Lot Area: 84,522 sq. ft.

PART II – BACKGROUND

12/08/15 – At the Planning Commission Regular Meeting the site plan was referred back to staff for 

additional information. 

The following is a list of the requested additional information:

1. Conceptual Drawings of finished building. 

2. Roof Elevations

Sheet A4.0

3. Explanation of a availability of parking and loading door  

The loading door directly in front of the parking spots is for loading in equipment during 

construction.  During normal operations, this door will not be used.  The only time it would 

be used is to remove or replace large pieces of equipment.  We do not expect this to occur 

very often (less than annually).  Any equipment change out requiring the use of that door 

would be during the off season when we have other places for the few off season 

employees to park.  During the season we expect to have only two staff on shift while the 

plant is operating.

4. Ocean Beauty agrees to move the Fire Hydrant across the street to the city parking lot. This will 

allow straight in access for trucks.

5. Approval of Water/Sewer lines and connections by the public works director prior to building 

permit being issued.

a. The permit application for the water and sewer connections is completed and will be 

mailed as soon as the check is printed.  The tentative locations for hook up are shown on 

Sheet  C4.  

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

10 of 140



Site Plan Review – Ocean Beauty Seafoods, LLC 

Page 2 of 4

6.   Grading Plan is on sheet C4. This has been reviewed by the Public Works.

7.  Scale Drawing Sheets C3. 

Ocean Beauty Seafoods, LLC is proposing to construct a facility to process fish waste into fish oil and 

fishmeal. Ocean Beauty Seafoods has a performance bond with the city for the development of the 

property.

PART III – REVIEW OF APPLICABLE CRITERIA & SUGGESTED FINDINGS

Chapter 18.33 ZONING – WATERFRONT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT

The development of a fish and seafood processing facility is permitted.

A Site Plan Review is required in the Waterfront Industrial District.

Section 18.42.010 ZONING – SITE PLAN REVIEW – Purpose.

Whenever required by this code or the city council, a site plan review shall be completed by the 

planning commission with a recommendation to the city council. Prior to the issuance of a 

building permit, the city council must approve the site plan for the project.

Section 18.42.030 ZONING – SITE PLAN REVIEW – Required Information.

The site plan to be submitted as required herein shall contain the following information. If any of 

the information requested herein is not applicable to a given project, the reasons for the non-

applicability of the information requested shall be stated in the site plan:

1. Name, address and phone number of owner/developer;

2. Legal description of property;

3. A scale of not less than 1″ = 20′;
4. Date, north point and scale;

5. The dimensions of all lot and property lines, showing the relationship of the subject property to 

abutting properties;

6. The zoning and siting of all structures on the subject property and abutting properties;

7. The location of each proposed structure in the development area, the use or uses to be 

contained therein, the number of stories, gross building area, distances between structures and lot 

lines, setback lines and approximate location of vehicular entrances and loading points;

8. The location of all existing and proposed drives and parking areas with the number of parking 

and/or loading spaces provided and the location and right-of-way widths of all abutting streets;

9. Location and height of all walls, fences and screen plantings, including a general plan for the 

landscaping of the development and the method by which landscaping is to be accomplished and 

be maintained;

10. Types of surfacing, such as paving, turfing or gravel to be used at the various locations;

11. A grading plan of the area demonstrating the proposed method of storm drainage;

12. Size and location of proposed sewer and water lines and connections;

13. Front and side elevations of proposed structures;

14. Exterior finish and color.

Chapter 18.48 ZONING – OFF-STREET PARKING, LOADING AND UNLOADING

Manufacturing uses require “One space for every two employees, plus as required if retail or 

warehouse uses on premises.”  Per 18.48.080, the planning commission may reduce the required 

number of parking spaces if the commission determines that an unreasonable amount parking 

spaces is required or that the required number of spaces does not meet the city's development 

goals or its land use needs.  Attached email describes the employment needs for the addition. 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

11 of 140



Site Plan Review – Ocean Beauty Seafoods, LLC 

Page 3 of 4

A fire hydrant is located on the corner of Breakwater and Jim Poor Avenue. City Code states

 16.45.10.206 - Obstruction of fire-protection equipment. 

No vehicle shall be parked within 15 feet of the front and 10 feet of the sides of a fire hydrant, Fire 

Department connection or fire protection control valve on private or public property. Fire 

Department connections and fire protection system control valves will be posted with an approved 

City "no parking" sign. The cost of such signs shall be borne by the property owner. 

The attached drawing shows building B being a dock for container trucks to be loaded and unloaded. Per 

the drawing where driveway is shown it would eliminate approximately (not including the 15 feet either 

side of the fire hydrant on the corner) three parking places on Breakwater avenue.  

Parking in the North Harbor is limited. Allowing a driveway along Breakwater is an acceptable option. 

Although another option might be to move the fire hydrant and light pole allowing the container trucks to 

back in from Jim Poor Avenue, this would keep truck traffic on Jim Poor Avenue and leave the public 

parking on Breakwater.

PART IV – SUGGESTED SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. The Planning Department must be in receipt of a Plan Review from the State of Alaska Fire 

Marshal prior to issuance of a Building Permit.

PART V – SUGGESTED MOTION

“I move that the Planning Commission recommend to the City Council to approve the Site Plan Review 

requested by Ocean Beauty Seafoods, LLC to construct a facility to process fish waste on Lot 3A, Block 

1, Cordova Industrial Park based on the findings and with the special conditions as contained in the staff 

report.”

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

12 of 140



Site Plan Review – Ocean Beauty Seafoods, LLC 

Page 4 of 4

Attachment A – Location Map

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

13 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

14 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

15 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

16 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

17 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

18 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

19 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

20 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

21 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

22 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

23 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

24 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

25 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

26 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

27 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

28 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

29 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

30 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

31 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

32 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

33 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

34 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

35 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

36 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

37 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

38 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

39 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

40 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

41 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

42 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

43 of 140



Site Plan Review – Alpine Diesel  

Page 1 of 4

Memorandum
To: Planning Commission

From: Planning Staff

Date: 1/7/16

Re: Site Plan Review – Alpine Diesel

PART I – GENERAL INFORMATION

Requested Actions: Site Plan Review

Applicant: Alpine Diesel

Owner Name: Jerry and Vicki Blackler

Address: Boat Yard Haul Out

Legal Description: A portion of Tract 1A of the Ocean Dock Subdivision #2

Parcel Number: 02-052-304

Zoning: Waterfront Industrial District

Lot Area: 1.78 Acres, Lease Portion 8,640 sq. ft.

PART II – BACKGROUND

12/10/14 – At the Harbor Commission Regular meeting Jerry Blackler proposed his idea to the Harbor 

Commission.

12/19/14 – At the Harbor Commission Special Meeting, the commission passed Resolution 12-14-03 

supporting the proposed idea of a repair and maintenance facility.

1/14/15 – At the Harbor Commission Regular Meeting Jerry Blackler presented plans to commission

2/4/15 – The Harbor Commission hand an on-site workshop in the shipyard with Jerry Blackler to review 

plans and location. 

2/10/15 – At the Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the commission recommended to City Council 

to make a portion of Tract 1A of the Ocean Dock Subdivision #2 Available. They also 

recommended to City Council to dispose of a portion of Tract 1A of the Ocean Dock Subdivision 

#2 by negotiating a lease agreement with Alpine Diesel LLC.

2/18/15 – At the City Council Regular Meeting, the council made a portion of Tract 1A of the Ocean 

Dock Subdivision #2 available on the 2015 land disposal maps. Council also voted to put a portion 

of Tract 1A of the Ocean Dock Subdivision #2 out for proposals. Council directed staff to add 

these four criteria to the RFP: 1) A long term lease; 2) vessel maintenance building; 3) how 

applicant will comply with applicable environmental laws; and 4) how will the applicant 

indemnify the city for any liability.

5/19/15 – At the Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the proposal from Alpine Diesel was discussed and 

recommend to City Council by a 7-0 vote. 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

44 of 140



Site Plan Review – Alpine Diesel  

Page 2 of 4

6/3/15 – At the City Council Regular Meeting, the recommendation from the Planning Commission was 

presented and the proposal was discussed. City Council directed the City Manager to enter into a 20 

year lease agreement with Alpine Diesel LLC. 

6/17/15 – At the City Council Regular Meeting, the council approved the first reading of the Ordinance for 

the lease. 

7/1/2015 – At the City Council Regular Meeting, the council approved the second reading of Ordnance

The land disposal process has been completed and a lease contract is in place. Alpine Diesel is proposing 

to construct a vessel maintenance facility for use by boat owners. 

 

PART III – REVIEW OF APPLICABLE CRITERIA & SUGGESTED FINDINGS

Chapter 18.33 ZONING – WATERFRONT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT

The development of vessel maintenance building is a permitted use in this district.

A Site Plan Review is required in the Waterfront Industrial District.

Section 18.42.010 ZONING – SITE PLAN REVIEW – Purpose.

Whenever required by this code or the city council, a site plan review shall be completed by the 

planning commission with a recommendation to the city council. Prior to the issuance of a 

building permit, the city council must approve the site plan for the project.

Section 18.42.030 ZONING – SITE PLAN REVIEW – Required Information.

The site plan to be submitted as required herein shall contain the following information. If any of 

the information requested herein is not applicable to a given project, the reasons for the non-

applicability of the information requested shall be stated in the site plan:

1. Name, address and phone number of owner/developer;

2. Legal description of property;

3. A scale of not less than 1″ = 20′;
4. Date, north point and scale;

5. The dimensions of all lot and property lines, showing the relationship of the subject property to 

abutting properties;

6. The zoning and siting of all structures on the subject property and abutting properties;

7. The location of each proposed structure in the development area, the use or uses to be 

contained therein, the number of stories, gross building area, distances between structures and lot 

lines, setback lines and approximate location of vehicular entrances and loading points;

8. The location of all existing and proposed drives and parking areas with the number of parking 

and/or loading spaces provided and the location and right-of-way widths of all abutting streets;

9. Location and height of all walls, fences and screen plantings, including a general plan for the 

landscaping of the development and the method by which landscaping is to be accomplished and 

be maintained;

10. Types of surfacing, such as paving, turfing or gravel to be used at the various locations;

11. A grading plan of the area demonstrating the proposed method of storm drainage;

12. Size and location of proposed sewer and water lines and connections;

13. Front and side elevations of proposed structures;

14. Exterior finish and color.

Attached are the Site plan drawings and application.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

45 of 140



Site Plan Review – Alpine Diesel  

Page 3 of 4

Chapter 18.48 ZONING – OFF-STREET PARKING, LOADING AND UNLOADING

Manufacturing uses require “One parking space for every one thousand square feet of gross 

building area.” 

The attached drawings show 12 parking spaces 10 feet wide by 24 feet long.  The gross floor space is 

8,640 square feet. 

Chapter 18.33.060 Setbacks

A.  Minimum Setbacks.

1. Front yard-Twenty feet.

2.   Side yard and rear yard: subject to Uniform Building Code regarding fire walls and 

separation of buildings. 

A Fire Life and Safety Application has been submitted and is being reviewed. Front and side setbacks are 

shown in drawings and meet requirements.  

Alpine Diesel will have stamped engineer drawings including snow and wind load. The Fire Marshal is 

requiring the drawings but due to the holiday season, the documents will not be ready for Planning 

Commission meeting.

Alpine diesel will provide the stamped drawing and approved Fire and Life Safety Plan with Building 

Permit Application.  
 
PART IV – SUGGESTED SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. The Planning Department must be in receipt of an approved Plan Review from the State of Alaska 

Fire Marshal prior to issuance of a Building Permit.

PART V – SUGGESTED MOTION

“I move that the Planning Commission recommend to the City Council to approve the Site Plan Review 

requested by Alpine Diesel to construct a vessel maintenance facility on a portion of Tract 1A of the 

Ocean Dock Subdivision #2 based on the findings and with the special conditions as contained in the staff 

report.”

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

46 of 140



Site Plan Review – Alpine Diesel  

Page 4 of 4

Attachment A – Location Map

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

47 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

48 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

49 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

50 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

51 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

52 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

53 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

54 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

55 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

56 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

57 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

58 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

59 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

60 of 140



Review of Proposals for the Existing Library/Museum Land and/or Building 
Page 1 of 2

Memorandum
To: Planning Commission
From: Planning Staff
Date: 1/7/16
Re: Review of Proposals for the Existing Library/Museum Land and/or Building

PART I – GENERAL INFORMATION

Requested Actions: Review proposals and give a recommendation to City Council
Legal Description: Lots 12-18, Block 6, Original Townsite
Parcel Number: 02-173-512, 513, 514, 515, 516, 517, 518
Zoning: Central Business District
Lot Area: Each lot area = 2,500 SF; Total Area = 17,500 SF
Attachments: Proposal Packet (The packet distributed to potential proposers)

Proposals

The request for proposals for this property began October 24th, 2015 and ended January 5th, 2016 at 5 PM. 
The City received seven proposals for the property. 

The proposed price from each proposal is as follows:
Facility Contractors........................................$505,000.00
Seaman’s Hardware .......................................$400,000.00
Moose Lodge .................................................$213,148.00
Cannery Row, Inc. .........................................$307,500.00
Cordova Drug.................................................No price
Children’s Pallas ............................................$215,000.00
Native Village of Eyak...................................$30,000.00

Following this memo is the full proposal packet for the Library/Museum Land and/or Building and each 
proposal. Any duplicated and unaltered pages from the proposal packet contained in the proposals are 
omitted.

In accordance with the Cordova Municipal Code, the Planning Commission will give a recommendation 
to City Council on the proposals. 

PART II – BACKGROUND

4/14/15 – At the Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the commission passed Resolution 15-05, which 
recommended the City Council make Lots 12-18, Block 6, Original Townsite available on the Land 
Disposal Maps. The commission also recommended the City Council dispose of the building by 
requesting sealed proposals. 

5/6/15 – At the City Council Regular Meeting, the council made the lots available and directed the City 
Manager to dispose of the Library/Museum buildings.

10/1/15 – The city received no proposals for the Library/Museum buildings.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

61 of 140



Review of Proposals for the Existing Library/Museum Land and/or Building 
Page 2 of 2

10/7/15 – From the City Council Regular Meeting Minutes:

22. Council action regarding disposal of Library / Museum Building 

M/Joyce S/Carpenter to direct the City Manager to put out an RFP for the sale of the lots with the building 
on it. 
Bailer said he disagrees. He doesn’t know why an amount was put on the RFP. He would prefer it go back 
to Planning and Zoning. Beedle said his biggest concern is the added cost to the people of Cordova, he wants 
it out of the City’s hands, as was promised. Reggiani reiterated the motion – RFP for land and building – he 
said he supports that. Burton asked if we can put out an RFP with an either/or option Mayor Kacsh said he 
was going to suggest that as well – an RFP with all proposals accepted. Joyce agrees and thinks the City 
Manager can work that into the RFP – as he is listening to us right now. Reggiani agreed – any and all 
proposals will be accepted. Robertson said he understood – any and all proposals accepted.
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Hallquist). Motion was approved.

PART III – APPLICABLE CRITERIA

Chapter 5.22.060 – REVENUE AND FINANCE – DISPOSAL OF CITY REAL PROPERTY – Methods of 
disposal for fair market value.

D. A request for proposals to lease or purchase city real property shall specify the criteria upon which 

proposals will be evaluated and the minimum rent or purchase price. All proposals submitted in response 

to a request for proposals shall be reviewed by the planning commission, which shall make a 

recommendation to the city council to accept or decline any or all of the proposals. The city council shall 

review the proposals and the planning commission's recommendation and accept or decline any of the 

proposals.

PART IV – SUGGESTED MOTION

“I move to recommend City Council approve the proposal from [insert proposer] for [insert property 

description (e.g. Lots 12-18, Block 6, Original Townsite and the improvements thereon)].”

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

62 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

63 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

64 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

65 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

66 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

67 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

68 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

69 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

70 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

71 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

72 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

73 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

74 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

75 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

76 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

77 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

78 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

79 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

80 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

81 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

82 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

83 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

84 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

85 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

86 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

87 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

88 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

89 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

90 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

91 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

92 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

93 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

94 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

95 of 140

planner2
Snapshot



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

96 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

97 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

98 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

99 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

100 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

101 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

102 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

103 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

104 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

105 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

106 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

107 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

108 of 140

planner2
Snapshot



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

109 of 140

planner2
Snapshot



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

110 of 140

planner2
Snapshot



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

111 of 140

planner2
Snapshot

planner2
Snapshot



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

112 of 140

planner2
Snapshot



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

113 of 140

planner2
Snapshot

planner2
Snapshot

planner2
Snapshot



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

114 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

115 of 140

planner2
Snapshot



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

116 of 140

planner2
Snapshot



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

117 of 140

planner2
Snapshot



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

118 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

119 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

120 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

121 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

122 of 140



Disposal of Vacant Office Space in Old City Hall Building 

Page 1 of 3

Memorandum
To: Planning Commission

From: Planning Staff

Date: 1/7/16

Re: Disposal of Vacant Office Portion of the Old City Hall Building

PART I – GENERAL INFORMATION

Requested Actions: Disposal of Vacant Office Portion of the Old City Hall Building 

Address: 602 Railroad Ave.

Zoning: Public Lands and Institutions District

Location Map: Attached

PART II – BACKGROUND

10/13/15 – From the Planning Commission Regular Meeting minutes:

M/Baenen S/McGann to recommend to City Council to remove the existing office portion of the old City 

Hall.

McGann said that he doesn’t see any demand for office space. One benefit would be additional parking 

spaces for the Cordova Center. Baenen said that if the City started to rent office space, there is a good chance 

they would take business from the private sector. The City could possibly take somebody from a location 

they are already renting. The original intent of the Cordova Center was to get rid of the old buildings. He 

overheard a conversation about the old City Hall building and heard someone say they were getting rid of it. 

It is better to just cut off half of the building and move the boiler over. It may cost a little, but at least they 

are not putting more money into it and they are not in direct competition with a local business. Roemhildt, 

Pegau, and Bailer said they agreed. 

Upon voice vote, motion passed 5-0.

Yea: Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt

Absent: Greenwood, Frohnapfel

12/2/15 – From the City Council Regular Meeting minutes:

10. Disposal of Old City Hall Building – Mayor Kacsh handed the gavel to Vice Mayor Burton and left the 

council table

M/Beedle S/Carpenter to remove the vacant office space in the existing City Hall building.

Joyce asked for clarification as to what that meant. Beedle said that was what was written in the memo from 

the Planning and Zoning Commission as a recommendation. Bailer asked if he could clarify – he said that 

P&Z received a memo that said that the City Council has made it a priority to maximize the use of the existing 

City Hall building while the fire and police remain in there. He said all of us on P & Z went back to the 

recollection that the City Hall was supposed to go away. Now, he said if you go back to the recommendation 

from 2009 – it was to either lease it out or let it go cold. Bailer said that option wasn’t presented to P & Z – 

i.e. to let it go cold. He said P & Z may have come up with another recommendation if that was given to them 

as an option. Joyce said that back then there was a lot of public input and the opinion was to dispose of one 

building and the choice was the Library/Museum building as the one that should be disposed of because it 

was going to be empty. Really, we couldn’t do much with City Hall because fire and police are still there and 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

123 of 140



Disposal of Vacant Office Space in Old City Hall Building 

Page 2 of 3

that is why the next step after that committee was to look for a new place for fire and police. Reggiani said 

it is good to look back at opinions from the past but that could be stale as well. He suggests referring it back 

to staff, kicking it back to P&Z for a fresh look now that the Cordova Center is complete with a more informed 

recommendation. 

M/Reggiani S/Joyce to refer to the Planning and Zoning Commission as stated above.

Hallquist said his comment would be that P & Z should look closely at the option that Mr. Robertson has 

presented with the supporting information from Chief Hicks and Paul Trumblee – it seems like a really good 

fit to consolidate all of the law enforcement into one location and rent the space to the Alaska State Troopers. 

Vote on the motion to refer: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Beedle-yes; Carpenter-yes; Burton-yes; Hallquist-yes; Bailer-

yes; Reggiani-yes and Joyce-yes. Motion approved.

Following this memo is background information that was provided to council, including letters from John 

Wilson, Randy Robertson, Michael Hicks, and Paul Trumblee, as well as a recommendation from the 

2009 City Buildings Committee and the minutes from one of their meetings. 

One of the applicable objectives of the ‘Municipal Buildings’ portion of the Comprehensive Plan is to 

“Investigate partnerships with other governmental agencies for use of the public safety facility.”

While the Planning Commission has already made the recommendation to remove the vacant office 

portion of City Hall, City Council referred it back to the commission to give a “more informed 

recommendation.” 

Staff have identified the following potential recommendations:

1. Remove the vacant office portion (not budgeted).

2. Not dispose of the vacant office portion (“leave it cold”).

3. Dispose of the vacant office portion by one of the four disposal methods from 5.22.060 B.

PART III – SUGGESTED MOTION(s)

Here are motions for the three options above, or state your own:

1. I move to recommend to City Council to remove the vacant office portion of the old City Hall 

building.

2. I move to recommend to City Council to retain the vacant office portion of the old City Hall 

building.

3. I move to recommend to City Council to dispose the vacant office portion of the old City Hall 

building for fair market value as outlined in the Cordova Municipal Code 5.22.060 B by *

Choose one of the following to insert for the asterisk:

1. Negotiating an agreement with the Alaska Wildlife Troopers.

2. Inviting sealed bids to lease or purchase the property.

3. Offering the property for lease or purchase at public auction.

4. Requesting sealed proposals to lease or purchase the property.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

124 of 140



Disposal of Vacant Office Space in Old City Hall Building 

Page 3 of 3

Location Map

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

125 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

126 of 140



 

Mayor and Councilors: 
 
Attached please find a position paper from Chief Hicks and Mr. Trumblee 
regarding the possibility of co‐locating the Alaska Wildlife Troopers (AWT) with 
the Cordova Police Department (CPD) and Cordova Volunteer Fire Department 
(CVFD) within the old City Hall facility.  An element we want to ensure you have 
complete visibility of is the AWT Commander, Colonel Bear, as well as leadership 
of Alaska’s Department of Administration (DOA), who are responsible for state 
leasing functions, have repeatedly stated it is the intent of the AWT to vacate 
their current Cordova facility with the termination of their lease NLT June, 
2016.  AWT personnel have already examined a facility off Whiteshed 
Road.  Discussion with the AWT and AOD suggests they are interested in leasing 
the old City Hall for $2.5k per  month, subject to the approval of City Council. 
 
Also attached are recommendations from the 2009 City Buildings Committee 
addressing disposition of the old City Hall and a summary of the same by Mrs. Lila 
Koplin, then City Clerk.  The building committee comments reflect Mr. Dave 
Roemhildt’ s estimate of $100k to $200k to remove the administrative/finance 
unit of the facility . . . a figure that undoubtedly has increased over the last 7 
years.  Both documents make it fairly clear that the recommendation was to lease 
or take the building “cold”, and to not tear it down until all activities were 
vacated.  Again, while these recommendations are now nearly seven (7) years old, 
they seem to convey essentially a comparable recommendation to what is on the 
table in 2015; long before there was any contemplation  or discussion of the 
synergistic, economic and operational value in possibly leasing to the AWT. 
 
v/r 
 
R. Robertson 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

127 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

128 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

129 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

130 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

131 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

132 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

133 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

134 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

135 of 140



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

136 of 140



Chair Election

Page 1 of 1

Memorandum
To: Planning Commission

From: Planning Staff

Date: 1/7/16

Re: Chair Election

PART I – GENERAL INFORMATION

The Planning Commission consists of seven members, one of which may be designated by the City 

Council. Pursuant to Section 3.40.030, a chair shall be selected annually from the members of the 

commission.

As soon as the current chair opens nominations from the floor, any member can bring forth a nomination.  

The member should know beforehand if the person he or she wishes to nominate is both eligible and willing 

to serve.  

When the nomination is from the floor:

 A member does not have to get recognition from the current chair to make a nomination.

 A person can nominate himself or herself.

 A nomination does not need a second.

 A member can’t nominate more than one person for an office until everyone has had the opportunity 

to make nominations.

 The current chair can continue presiding, even if he or she is one of the nominees for the office.

 After each nomination, the current chair repeats the name to the commission.  

A motion to close nominations is not necessary. Usually the current chair closes nominations when no further 

nominations come forward.

If at any time during the nominating process a member realizes that he or she will be unable to serve if 

elected, the member should stand and request that his or her name be removed from nomination.  Removing 

your name during the nomination process is better than waiting until after you are elected.  

After the nominating process is finished, the members must vote on the proposed candidates. Members can 

take the vote for election by

 Voice vote

 Ballot

 Roll call

PART II – SUGGESTED ACTION

Staff recommend the chair open nominations from the floor by stating: “Nominations are now in order for 

the office of chair of the Planning Commission.”

After nominations, a voice vote is recommended if there is only one nomination, or a roll call vote if there 

are multiple nominations.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

137 of 140



Vice Chair Election

Page 1 of 1

Memorandum
To: Planning Commission

From: Planning Staff

Date: 1/7/16

Re: Vice Chair Election

PART I – GENERAL INFORMATION

While the city’s code does not require a vice chair for the Planning Commission, this has been the 

practice in the past. Having a vice chair gives staff and public another point of contact and allows for 

meetings to run smoothly if the chair is absent. Staff recommend that the commission continue this 

practice and look at codifying the practice in the future.

The procedure for vice chair election should be the same as for the chair.

PART II – STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommend the chair open nominations from the floor by stating: “Nominations are now in order for 

the office of vice chair of the Planning Commission.”

After nominations, a voice vote is recommended if there is only one nomination, or a roll call vote if there 

are multiple nominations.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

138 of 140



 1
/7

/2
0
1
6
 1

0
:5

3
 A

M

S
u

M
o

T
u

W
e

T
h

F
r

S
a

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1

0
1

1
1

2
1

3
1

4
1

5
1

6
1

7
1

8
1

9
2

0
2

1
2

2
2

3
2

4
2

5
2

6
2

7
2

8
2

9
3

0
3

1

Ja
n

u
ar

y
 2

0
1

6

S
u

M
o

T
u

W
e

T
h

F
r

S
a

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1

0
1

1
1

2
1

3
1

4
1

5
1

6
1

7
1

8
1

9
2

0
2

1
2

2
2

3
2

4
2

5
2

6
2

7
2

8
2

9

F
eb

ru
ar

y
 2

0
1

6
J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

6

D
e
c
 2

7
2
8

2
9

3
0

3
1

Ja
n

 1
, 
1
6

2

C
it

y
 C

lo
se

d
 -

 N
ew

 Y
ea

r'
s

3
4

5
6

7
8

9

7
:0

0
p
m

 C
it

y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 

R
eg

u
la

r 
(C

C
 C

o
m

m
. 

R
o
o
m

s 
A

 &
 B

)

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

6
:3

0
p
m

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
 R

eg
u
la

r 

(C
C

 C
o
m

m
. 
R

o
o
m

s 
A

 &
 

B
)

7
:0

0
p
m

 H
ar

b
o
r 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
 R

eg
u
la

r 

(C
C

 C
o
m

m
. 
R

o
o
m

 B
)

7
:0

0
p
m

 S
ch

o
o
l 

B
o
ar

d
 

R
eg

u
la

r 
(H

ig
h
 S

ch
o
o
l)

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

C
it

y
 C

lo
se

d
 -

 M
L

K
 D

ay
7
:0

0
p
m

 C
it

y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 

R
eg

u
la

r 
(L

ib
ra

ry
)

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7

2
8

2
9

3
0

6
:0

0
p
m

 P
ar

k
s 

an
d
 R

ec
. 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
 R

eg
u
la

r 

M
ee

ti
n
g
 (

C
C

 C
o
m

m
. 

R
o
o
m

 B
)

3
1

F
e
b

 1
2

3
4

5
6

S
U

N
D

A
Y

M
O

N
D

A
Y

T
U

E
S
D

A
Y

W
E
D

N
E
S
D

A
Y

T
H

U
R

S
D

A
Y

F
R

ID
A

Y
S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

139 of 140



 1
/7

/2
0
1
6
 1

0
:5

3
 A

M

S
u

M
o

T
u

W
e

T
h

F
r

S
a

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1

0
1

1
1

2
1

3
1

4
1

5
1

6
1

7
1

8
1

9
2

0
2

1
2

2
2

3
2

4
2

5
2

6
2

7
2

8
2

9

F
eb

ru
ar

y
 2

0
1

6

S
u

M
o

T
u

W
e

T
h

F
r

S
a

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1

0
1

1
1

2
1

3
1

4
1

5
1

6
1

7
1

8
1

9
2

0
2

1
2

2
2

3
2

4
2

5
2

6
2

7
2

8
2

9
3

0
3

1

M
ar

ch
 2

0
1

6
F

eb
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
6

Ja
n

 3
1

F
e
b

 1
2

3
4

5
6

7
:0

0
p
m

 C
it

y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 

R
eg

u
la

r 
(C

C
 C

o
m

m
. 

R
o
o
m

s 
A

 &
 B

)

7
8

9
1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

6
:3

0
p
m

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
 R

eg
u
la

r 

(C
C

 C
o
m

m
. 
R

o
o
m

s 
A

 &
 

B
)

7
:0

0
p
m

 H
ar

b
o
r 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
 R

eg
u
la

r 

(C
C

 C
o
m

m
. 
R

o
o
m

 B
)

7
:0

0
p
m

 S
ch

o
o
l 

B
o
ar

d
 

R
eg

u
la

r 
(H

ig
h
 S

ch
o
o
l)

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

C
it

y
 C

lo
se

d
 -

 P
re

si
d
en

t'
s 

D
ay

7
:0

0
p
m

 C
it

y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 

R
eg

u
la

r 
(L

ib
ra

ry
)

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7

6
:0

0
p
m

 P
ar

k
s 

an
d
 R

ec
. 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
 R

eg
u
la

r 

M
ee

ti
n
g
 (

C
C

 C
o
m

m
. 

R
o
o
m

 B
)

2
8

2
9

M
a
r 

1
2

3
4

5

S
U

N
D

A
Y

M
O

N
D

A
Y

T
U

E
S
D

A
Y

W
E
D

N
E
S
D

A
Y

T
H

U
R

S
D

A
Y

F
R

ID
A

Y
S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 12, 2016

140 of 140


	01-12-15 Agenda
	11-10-15 Regular Meeting Minutes_0
	12-08-15 Public Hearing Minutes_0
	12-08-15 Regular Meeting Minutes_0
	01_12_2016 Planners Report_0
	OB Site Plan_0
	AllDrawingsFormatted
	Alpine Diesel  Site Plan_0
	2all
	Scan1455

	LibraryMuseum Memo_0
	RFP for LibraryMuseum
	FacilityContractorsLLC
	1

	SeamensHardware
	MooseLodge
	CanneryRow
	CordovaDrug
	ChildrensPallas
	6

	NVE
	Disposal of City Hall rec from P&Z to Cncl_0
	Wilson Letter
	Background
	Chair Election_0
	Vice Chair Election_0
	Monthly Schedule

